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The Burlington Comes

A  trium virate  of men —  a law yer, a financier, 
and  an eng ineer —  b ro u g h t the C hicago, B urling ­
ton & Q u in cy  R ailroad  to Iow a. T h e  law yer, 
Jam es F red e rick  Joy, w as destined  to see his nam e 
become a synonym  for the en tire  B urlington  S y s ­
tem. T h e  financier, John M u rra y  F orbes, gave to 
the B urlington a “ch a rac te r an d  s tab ility ” w hich 
d istinguished it sh arp ly  from m ost o ther ro ad s of 
th a t day . T h e  engineer, John W . Brooks, served 
as a d irec to r of the B urlington  for a  score of y ears  
and  as p residen t of the Iow a an d  N eb rask a  divi­
sions. C o n stan tly  con fron ted  by  alm ost in super­
able odds, B rooks proved him self “a perfec t N a ­
poleon” as a m anager an d  engineer an d  w as a 
vital elem ent in the h isto ry  of the road.

T h e  com ing of the B urlington  to Iow a is rep le te  
w ith  thrilling incidents. A lthough  its co rpo ra te  
h istory  began  in Illinois, the prologue had  its in ­
ception in the law  office of Jam es F . Joy in D etro it
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in 1845. N e w  H am p sh ire  bo rn , a  g ra d u a te  of 
D artm o u th  C o llege  a n d  th e  H a rv a rd  L aw  School, 
Joy  h ad  com e w est to  D e tro it in 1836 to  practice 
law . W ith in  a  few  m on ths he saw  the  M ich igan  

leg is la tu re  ap p ro p ria te  m illions for ra ilro ad  con­
s tru c tio n  ac ro ss  the S ta te . D u rin g  th e  ensuing 
y e a rs  the  M ich ig an  C en tra l w as  co n stru c ted  from 
D e tro it to  K alam azoo  w hile  th e  M ich ig an  S ou th ­
ern  w as  bu ilt from  T o led o , O hio , to  H illsdale . 
T h e  pan ic of 1837 p a ra ly zed  fu rth e r construction , 
w h ereu p o n  a  loud clam or a ro se  fo r ea rly  com ple­
tion of th e  ro a d s  by  p riv a te  cap ita l.

Joy w as  am ong those w ho  u rg ed  the  sale  of the 
p ro p e rty  to  a p riv a te  com pany. H e  found  an 
a rd e n t su p p o rte r  in John W . B rooks, a tw en ty - 
s ix -y ea r-o ld  eng ineer a n d  form er su p erin ten d en t 
of the  A u b u rn  an d  R o ch este r R a ilro ad . A lthough  
the  M ich ig an  C en tra l w as  in “ sh a b b y ” condition, 

B rooks a n d  Joy felt it w ou ld  be a  p rofitab le  in­
vestm en t if it w ere  rebu ilt an d  com pleted  to Lake 
M ich ig an . B rooks acco rd in g ly  w en t ea s t in the 
fall o f 1845 in sea rch  of financial support.

F o rtu n e  led B rooks to  th e  coun ting-room  of 
John M u rra y  F o rbes, a  w ea lth y  B oston ian  w ho 
h ad  w on  a considerab le  fo rtu n e  in C h ina . F asc i­
n a ted  b y  th e  p ro sp ec t o f sponso ring  a ra ilroad  
th ro u g h  the  M ich ig an  w ilderness, the  young 
financier ag reed  to su p p o rt th e  pro ject, and
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stra ig h tw ay  hired  D aniel W e b s te r  to d ra f t  a 
ch arte r th a t w ould  be accep tab le  to easte rn  capital.

W h e n  B rooks re tu rn ed  to secure the  app roval 
of the M ich igan  leg islature, he found the S ta te  
had  placed its ra ilro ad s  on the  barg a in  counter. 
T h e  M ich igan  C en tra l R ailro ad  C om pany  ag reed  
to buy the D etro it-K alam azoo  ro ad  for $2,000,000, 
bu t the successful consum m ation of this ac t rested  
on F o rb es’s ab ility  to ra ise  sufficient funds in six 
m onths to pay  for the p roperty .

F orbes p itched into his ta sk  w ith  enthusiasm . 
H is good judgm ent an d  in teg rity  quickly w on the 
support of easte rn  cap ita l an d  on S eptem ber 23, 
1846, the M ich igan  C en tra l took possession of its 
p roperty . F o rb es w as elected the  first p residen t 
and  Brooks w as appo in ted  superin tenden t. By 
the spring of 1849 the old ro ad  had  been rebuilt 
an d  ex tended  to N ew  Buffalo on L ake M ich igan . 
M ore  than  six million do llars  w ere  requ ired  in the 
purchase, construction , an d  equipm ent of th is line 
w hich still serves as  a m ain a r te ry  of travel to 
Iow a by  w ay  of C hicago.

Both F o rbes and  B rooks realized  th a t the ra p ­
idly expand ing  traffic w as bound  to invite com pe­
tition. Som e N ew  Y o rk  financiers had  purchased  
the M ichigan  S ou thern  road  an d  com m enced bu ild ­
ing a round  Lake M ichigan . A t the sam e tim e a 
ra ilroad  w as pro jec ted  along  the sou thern  shore
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of L ake E rie  to  connect T o le d o  w ith  Buffalo, N ew  
Y ork . T h e  com pletion  of th ese  tw o  p ro jec ts  
w ou ld  give th e  M ich ig an  S o u th ern  an  a ll-ra il con­
nection  be tw een  the  A tlan tic  sea b o a rd  an d  C h i­
cago , th u s  re leg a tin g  th e  M ich ig an  C en tra l to  the 
position  of a p u re ly  local ro ad . T h e  d irec to rs  of 

th e  M ich ig an  C en tra l p ro m p tly  accep ted  the  cha l­
lenge  b y  g ra n tin g  th e ir officers un lim ited  pow ers 

to  cope w ith  th is n ew  a n d  d an g e ro u s  rival.
It w as  Joy w h o  s tru ck  th e  first b low . T ra in e d  

to  d e tec t loopholes in legal docum ents, he found 
th e  c h a rte r  o f th e  N e w  A lb a n y  an d  Salem  “con­
v en ien tly  v a g u e ” to  a llow  th a t so u th e rn  Ind iana  

ro a d  to  bu ild  a  “b ra n c h ” a ro u n d  L ake M ich igan . 
W h ile  B rooks w as  en g a g ed  in rac ing  th e  N o rth ­
ern  In d ian a  con stru c tio n  fo rce  a ro u n d  Lake 
M ich ig an , Joy  so u g h t to  p ro cu re  an  en tran ce  into 
C h icag o  over th e  Illinois C en tra l track . In the 
litiga tion  th a t fo llow ed he o b ta in ed  the  serv ices of 
A b rah am  Lincoln an d  an  ag reem en t w as  reached  
w h ereb y  th e  M ich ig an  C en tra l p u rch ased  $600,- 
000 in Illinois C en tra l b o n d s as  the  price fo r the 
p riv ilege of using  th a t track . F in a lly , the  M ich i­
g an  C en tra l s to ck h o ld ers  in v ested  heav ily  in the 
G re a t W e s te rn  of C a n a d a  in o rd e r to  ob ta in  di­
rec t access to  th e  ea s t b y  w a y  of O n ta rio .

T h e  first th ro u g h  tra in  from  L ake E rie  en tered  
C h icag o  on M a y  21, 1852, over the  track  of the
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Illinois C en tra l. It w as  a  b rillian t v ictory  for the 
M ichigan  C en tra l. T h e  M ich igan  S ou thern  had  
been running  tra in s  from  In d ian a  into C h icago  as 
early  as A pril 22, 1852. A  th irteen  mile gap  in 
Indiana, how ever, p reven ted  it from  beginning  
th rough  service from  T o led o  until a  d ay  a f te r  the 
first th rough  tra in  of the M ich igan  C en tra l.

But the riva lry  betw een  the tw o  ro ad s  d id  no t 
stop a t C hicago. T h e  sm oke of ba ttle  had  h a rd ly  
cleared on this fro n t w hen  the M ich igan  C en tra l 
found the rival com pany subsid izing  an d  build ing  
the C hicago an d  R ock Island  R ailroad  to the 
M ississippi. W o u ld  the M ich igan  C en tra l accep t 
the challenge? D id  the  u ltim ate re tu rn s  on the 
capital invested  ju stify  the con tinuance of such 
devasta ting  com petition? T h e  M ich igan  C en tra l 
men looked to their financier for the answ er.

F orbes realized th a t the gold rush  to C alifo r­
nia w as “ the d irec t cause of the construction  of 
four-fifths of the W e s te rn  ra ilw ay s’’ begun  a f te r  
1849. A nd  w hile he did no t minimize the  eco­
nomic, political, an d  m ilitary  value of a tran sco n ti­
nental ra ilroad , he w as convinced th a t the  rich 
prairies of Illinois an d  Iow a w ould  yield the ra il­
road  investor his richest harvest. In 1852 F o rb es 
w ro te  E d w a rd  E v ere tt H a le  th a t “ the strong  
hands and  em pty stom achs of E urope, an d  the rich 
Dollar-an-acre P ra iries  of the W e s t ’’ m ust be
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b ro u g h t to g e th e r b y  business m ethods an d  ph ilan ­

th ro p y . C a lifo rn ia” , he a sse r ted , “ is a  cy p h er in 
com parison , a m ere p ro d u cer of the  measure of 

value, n o t of value itse lf .” H e a rte n e d  b y  such 
g low ing  p ro sp ec ts , the  M ich ig an  C en tra l d irec to rs  

d e te rm in ed  to  ex ten d  the ir line w es tw a rd .
A s ch ief counsel fo r th e  M ich ig an  C en tra l, Joy 

w as  d e leg a ted  to  rum m age th ro u g h  th e  Illinois 

ra ilro a d  c h a rte rs  to find an  o u tle t to  Iow a. Since 
the  R ock  Is lan d  w as  a lre a d y  u n d e r construc tion  
a n d  the  Illinois C en tra l an d  the  G a len a  an d  C hi­
cag o  U n io n  w ere  ex ten d in g  the ir lines in to  n o rth ­
w este rn  Illinois, Joy scru tin ized  the  ch a rte rs  lead ­
ing to  the  sou th w est. U n ab le  to  find a ro ad  tha t 
s tre tch ed  c lear ac ro ss  th e  S ta te , th e  resourcefu l 
Joy  h it upon  the idea  of com bining four ro ad s  th a t 
sp raw led  aim lessly  in a so u th w este rly  direction 
b e tw een  the  Illinois an d  M ississipp i rivers. T h ree  
of these  —  th e  A u ro ra  B ranch , th e  N o rth e rn  
C ross, an d  th e  P eo ria  an d  O q u a w k a  —  had  been 
in co rp o ra ted  in F eb ru a ry , 1849, b y  local cap ita l­
ists. T h e  C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  R ailro ad  had 
been  c h a rte re d  by  ira te  citizens of G a le sb u rg  on 
F e b ru a ry  15, 1851, w h en  the  P eo ria  an d  O q u a w ­
ka w as  su rveyed . If the  c h a rte rs  of these  com­
pan ies could  be am ended  to  perm it the w eld ing  of 
th e  term inals  to g e th e r so a s  to  give the  M ich igan  
C en tra l a d irec t run  in to  C hicago , the  com pany
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w ould have little to fea r from  its chief com petitor.
T h e  M ich igan  C en tra l m an ag ers  lost no  time in 

opening nego tiations. F o rtu n a te ly , they  found 
each road  in a recep tive m ood, for local cap ita l 
had  proven u tte rly  inadequate . Indeed , th ree  of 
the com panies had  a lre ad y  m ade overtu res for aid  
in the E a s t th ro u g h  such m en as C h au n cey  S. 
C olton of the C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  R ailroad  and  
Jam es W . G rim es, a d irec to r of the P eo ria  an d  
O quaw ka. By ag reeing  to furn ish  the requ ired  
capital, the M ich igan  C en tra l secured  am en d ­
m ents to their ch a rte rs  a t a special session of the 
Illinois leg isla tu re  in June, 1852, w hich included  
the desired  changes an d  m ade the p ro jec t accep t­
able to conservative easte rn  investors. F o rbes 
im m ediately set to  w ork  ra ising  funds to  push 
active construction . H e  had  ac ted  none too soon, 
for some of the com panies w ere  a lre ad y  on the 
verge of being connected  w ith  the R ock Island  
and  w ould thus have been absorbed  by  the M ich i­
gan Southern  in terests.

T h e  nucleus from  w hich the p re sen t-d ay  B ur­
lington System  developed w as the A u ro ra  B ranch 
R ailroad , a com pany th a t had  been incorpora ted  
to build a single or double track  ra ilroad  from  the 
“tow n of A u ro ra ’ n o rth w ard  to  som e “eligible 

and  convenien t’’ point of connection w ith  the G a ­
lena & C hicago U nion  R ailroad . C o n trac ts  on the
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A u ro ra  B ran ch  w ere  le t la te  in 1849 a n d  on S ep ­
tem ber 2, 1850, the  ro ad  w as  opened  fo r business 
to  Junction  ( W e s t  C h ic a g o ) , tw elve  m iles d i­
re c tly  n o rth  of A u ro ra . O n  O c to b e r 21, 1850, 
th ro u g h  tra in  serv ice w as  in a u g u ra te d  betw een  
A u ro ra  an d  C h icag o  over the  c ru d e  seco n d -h an d  

s tra p  ra il track s  of th e  A u ro ra  B ranch  an d  the 
G . & C . U . P a sse n g e rs  pa id  $1.25 for th is fo rty - 
tw o  mile trip ; p o ta toes, w h ea t, an d  shelled  corn 
w ere  tra n sp o r te d  for five cen ts  a bushel; o a ts  an d  
b u ck w h ea t fo r th ree  an d  a  ha lf cen ts; a n d  barley  
a t  fou r an d  a ha lf cen ts . T h e  tariff on flour and  
sa lt w as  six teen  cen ts  a ba rre l, w hile  lum ber could 
be sh ipped  fo r $1.50 p er th o u san d . T h e  equip ­
m ent of the  A u ro ra  B ranch  a t th a t tim e consisted  
of a seco n d -h an d  locom otive an d  p assen g e r car 

to g e th e r w ith  tw o  fre ig h t ca rs  b o rro w ed  from  the 
G a len a  com pany. In 1933 the  equ ipm ent of the 
B urling ton , w hich  traces  its co rp o ra te  beg inn ings 
to  the A u ro ra  B ranch , inc luded  1300 locom otives, 
1200 p assen g e r cars, an d  60 ,000  fre ig h t cars.

A  num ber of ch an g es  w ere  m ade in th e  A u ro ra  
B ranch  c h a rte r  by  Joy. F irs t, the nam e of the 
co rp o ra tio n  w as  ch an g ed  to  the  C h icago  and  
A u ro ra  R a ilro ad  C om pany . N ex t, the new  o r­
gan iza tio n  w as  perm itted  to increase  its capital 
stock  to a sum  no t exceed ing  tw o  million dollars. 
F in a lly , the  C. & A . w as  to  ex ten d  in a so u thw est-



THE BURLINGTON COMES 389

erly  direction from  A u ro ra  to  a po in t a t  least fif­
teen miles n o rth  of La S alle w h ere  it w as  to in te r­
sect the Illinois C en tra l an d  also  form  a junction 
w ith  the C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  R ailroad . T h e

point selected, an  un inhab ited  prairie  in 1850, 
grew  in a tw inkling. O rg an ized  as a tow n in 1853, 
M endo ta  had  1800 in h ab itan ts  b y  1855.

T h e  first m eeting of the  C hicago  an d  A u ro ra  
stockholders w as held in C h icago  on July 6, 1852. 
T h e  d irec to rs an d  officers of the  A u ro ra  B ranch 
w ere re ta ined  in office, bu t the presence of Joy and  
Brooks on the d irec to ra te  signified the  influence of 
eastern  capital. T h e  stock of the com pany w as 
prom ptly over-subscribed , the C hicago  Democrat
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observ ing  th a t the  ro ad  w as  co n tro lled  by  a 
“ s tro n g e r a n d  w e a lth ie r” g ro u p  of cap ita lis ts  th an  
a n y  o th e r com pany . In th e  fo llow ing y ea r, 1853, 

Joy becam e p re sid en t o f the  ro ad .
C o n stru c tio n  b eg an  a t  A u ro ra  d u rin g  1852 an d  

th e  line w a s  com pleted  to  M e n d o ta  on O cto b er 
20, 1853, e ig h t d a y s  a f te r  th e  R ock  Is lan d  w as 
com pleted  to  Sheffield b y  th e  M ich ig an  S ou thern . 
T h e  tra c k  had  been  laid  w ith  a n ew  rail w hich  the 
com pany  deem ed “ fa r su p e rio r” to th e  o rd in a ry  T  

rail. T h e  C h icag o  Tribune w as  of th e  opinion th a t 
th is “co n tinuous o r com pound  rail, over w hich  the 
ca rs  roll, a s  sm ooth ly  a s  if it w ere  g la ss” , m ade 
th e  C . & A . th e  “m ost co m fo rtab le” ro ad  ou t of 
C h icago . B ran d  new  fre ig h t an d  p assen g e r cars 
an d  locom otives of “ u n su rp a sse d ” size an d  pow er 
h ad  a lso  been  acqu ired . W ith  fifty -e igh t m iles of 
tra c k  in op era tio n  w es t of L ake M ich igan , the 
M ich ig an  C en tra l w as  p re p a red  to  th ro w  the full 
fo rce of its en e rg y  in to  th e  developm ent o f the 
C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  R ailroad .

T h is  com pany  h ad  o rig ina lly  p lan n ed  a  connec­
tion w ith  the  old R ock Is lan d  an d  La S alle  R ail­
ro ad . T h e  am endm en t to its c h a rte r  d a ted  June 
19, 1852, au th o rized  th e  C . M . T . to  co n stru c t a 
ro ad  from  G a lesb u rg  “ in a n o rth ea s te rly  d irec ­
tion, on the  m ost d irec t an d  eligible rou te  to w ard s  
the  C ity  of C hicago , to  a po in t . . . on or n ea r
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the line of the C h icago  an d  Rock Island  R ailroad , 
or on or n ea r the  line of an y  o ther ra ilroad  or ra il­
roads connecting  w ith  or ex ten d in g  to the said C ity  
of C h icago” . T h e  rou te  from  G alesbu rg  to M en - 
do ta  w as selected for its b eau ty  an d  fertility . “ If 
Illinois is the g ard en  spo t of the W e s t ,” the  C h i­
cago Tribune of Jan u a ry  4, 1854, asse rted , “ the 
C en tral M ilita ry  T ra c t  is m ore certa in ly  the g a r­
den spot of Illinois, an d  w hen  this road  is finished, 
piercing the ‘gard en  sp o t’ th ro u g h  its very  cen tre, 
it will b ring  to our city  an  am ount of trad e  an d  
travel g rea te r than  all th a t w e now  derive from  
the various ra ilro ad s  connecting  C hicago  w ith  the 
in terio r.”

A  prelim inary  estim ate by  eng ineer W illiam  P. 
W h ittle  on D ecem ber 1, 1851, had  pu t the cost of 
constructing  the proposed  C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  
R ailroad  a t $13,224.80 per mile. A  p assenger an d  
freight depo t a t G alesbu rg  costing $2500 an d  
some first class p assen g er coaches costing $2000 
a tte s t the m odesty  of W h it t le ’s estim ates. Y e t 
w ithout m ore than  local support, the p rogen ito rs  
of the C. M . T . d id  ‘‘no t expect to ca rry  the en te r­
prise to a successful issue” .

T h e  en trance  of the  M ich igan  C en tra l in to  the 
C. M . T . w as  follow ed by  the election of John 
W . Brooks to  the presidency . U n d e r his ab le 
direction the  road  w as com pleted an d  p laced  in
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o p era tio n  to  G a le sb u rg  on D ecem ber 7, 1854. In 

his re p o rt to  th e  s to ck h o ld ers  on A pril 2, 1855, 
B rooks listed  th e  sources from  w hich  construc tion  
fu n d s  h ad  been  derived . A  to ta l o f $727 ,111 .80  
h ad  been  ra ised  on th e  9861 sh a re s  of stock. O f 
th is am o u n t ea s te rn  cap ita lis ts  h ad  p a id  $541,925 
on 7225 sh a re s  w hile  w este rn  subscribers  h ad  a d ­
v an ced  $185 ,186 .80  on 2636 shares. A lth o u g h  
th e  ro ad  h ad  been “ so fa r  com pleted  as to  be open 
to  public u se ’’, on ly  seven ty-five  d o lla rs  h ad  been 
ca lled  on each  one h u n d red  d o lla r sh are . D esp ite  
th is fac t o n e-six th  of th e  w este rn  sh areh o ld ers  
h ad  been  ab le  to  co n trib u te  an  av e rag e  of only  

42j/2 p er cen t on th e  am oun t called . A  to ta l of 
$1 ,491 ,000  in first an d  second  m o rtg ag e  bonds 
b ea rin g  seven an d  e igh t per cen t in te re st h ad  been 
sold  a t  a d iscoun t. S m aller item s listed  b y  B rooks 
b ro u g h t the  to ta l rece ip ts  to  $2,413,955.52 . 
A g a in s t th is sum  the  com pany  h ad  sp en t $2,299,- 
786.25 o r $28 ,747 .32  a  m ile for construc tion  an d  

equipm ent.
T h e  C . M . T . ea rn ed  $451 ,895 .49  in its first 

y e a r  of o p era tio n  end ing  A pril 30, 1856. T h e  roll­
ing stock  consisted  of 19 locom otives, 6 first-class 
p assen g e r ca rs  an d  2 b a g g a g e  cars , 50 coal and  
51 p la tfo rm  cars, an d  116 house fre ig h t cars. T h e  
com pany  h ad  experim en ted  successfu lly  w ith  a  re ­
bu ilt co a l-b u rn in g  locom otive an d  had  acco rd ing ly
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ordered  four new  coal-burn ing  engines. T h ese  
w ere “so co nstruc ted  as to bu rn  the sm oke” , thus 
avoiding one “serious ob jec tio n ” to  coal as  a fuel.

T h e  P eo ria  an d  O q u aw k a , w hich  had  been a u ­
thorized to build  a ra ilro ad  from  P eo ria  to the 
“ tow n of O q u a w k a ” , served  as  the m eans of 
closing the final gap  in the  line to the M ississippi. 
O n  July 1, 1853, the C . M . T . had  a rra n g e d  to 
have this com pany locate its ro ad  w ith in  the so u th ­
ern limits of G alesb u rg  in o rd e r to prov ide a  con ­
nection to B urling ton . O n  O cto b er 3, 1854, the 
P. & O . m ade a jo in t co n trac t w ith  the C. Ô A. 
and  the C. M . T . leasing its ro ad  betw een  G a le s ­
burg and  the M ississipp i fo r th ree  years  follow ing 
its com pletion. T h e  track  to E a s t B urlington  w as 
opened for traffic on M arc h  17, 1855.

T h e  arrival of the iron horse on the ban k s of the 
M ississippi opposite B urling ton  w as a p roud  event 
in the h isto ry  of th a t city. A  g ran d  celebration  
w as held on M a y  31st a t  w hich  the “b eau ty  an d  
fash ion” an d  “ch ivalry  an d  p o w er” of O ttum w a, 
A gency  C ity , Fairfield , M o u n t P leasan t, N ew  
London, K eokuk, D av en p o rt, an d  o ther Iow a 
tow ns m ingled w ith  the “ se lec ted” elegance and  
talen t of the E ast. A rriv ing  in ten  “ su p erb ” p as ­
senger cars d raw n  by  the “ huge and  ga llan t iron 
horse” , the guests, am ong w hom  w ere Lew is 
C ass, S tephen  A . D oug las, an d  M ay o r Boone of
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C hicago , received  a  w arm  g ree ting  b y  th e  re ­
cep tion  com m ittee h ead ed  by  G o v ern o r Jam es W . 

G rim es. T h e  evening  w as  d e lig h tfu lly  spen t in 
m usic a n d  d an c in g , speeches an d  feasting .

O n ly  one segm ent, th e  N o rth e rn  C ro ss  R ail­
ro ad , rem ained  unfin ished . O rig in a lly  included  in 
th e  In te rn a l Im provem ent A c t of 1837, th e  old 
N o rth e rn  C ro ss  w as  p lan n ed  to  trav e rse  cen tra l 
Illinois b y  w a y  of Q u in cy  an d  Springfield . T h e  
first locom otive in Illinois w as  a lleg ed  to  have been 
p u t in serv ice on the e igh t m ile track  ru n n in g  ea s t­

w a rd  from  M ered o sia  on N o v em b er 8, 1838. 
D u rin g  the  ensu ing  y ea rs , how ever, th e  ro ad  had  
ro tted  a w a y  an d  on F e b ru a ry  10, 1849, citizens of 
Q u in cy  an d  v icin ity  h ad  rev ived  the  title  an d  in 
1851 th is com pany  w as  au th o rized  to co n stru c t a 
b ran ch  line “ th ro u g h  th e  M ilita ry  B oun ty  T ra c t, 
an d  te rm in a tin g  a t the  m ost conven ien t an d  eli­
gible po in t a t  o r n ea r the  so u th ern  term ination  of 
the  Illinois a n d  M ich ig an  C a n a l’’. T h is  ac t had  
been am en d ed  in 1852 to a llow  the  N o rth e rn  
C ro ss  to  connect w ith  a ra ilro ad  lead ing  in to  C h i­
cago. O n ly  tw en ty  m iles h ad  been  com pleted 
n o rth  of Q u in cy  b y  Ja n u a ry  19, 1855, w hen  the 
M ich ig an  C en tra l took  ch a rg e . T h e  rem aining  
e ig h ty  m iles w ere  com pleted  b y  Jan u a ry  31, 1856.

It w as  n o t until 1864 th a t th e  w eb  of steel, upon 
w hich  the  Jo y -F o rb es-B ro o k s trium vira te  h ad  been



THE BURLINGTON COMES 395

spinning for a dozen years , w as  com pleted. By 
1855 Joy h ad  becom e p resid en t of bo th  the C h i­
cago and  A u ro ra  an d  the C en tra l M ilita ry  T ra c t  
R ailroads. T w o  y ea rs  p rev iously  the  C h icago  
Democrat h ad  exp ressed  a hope th a t the  M ich i­
gan C en tra l w ould  conso lidate  the nam es as well 
as the ro ad s  so th a t the ed ito rs  could “w ith  a 
single scra tch  of the p en ’’ let the people know  
w h a t they  w ere  ta lk ing  abou t. T h e  C h icago  an d  
A uro ra  w as inco rpo ra ted  as the C hicago, B urling ­
ton and  Q u in cy  R ailroad  C om pany  on F eb ru a ry  
14, 1855. T h is  com pany abso rbed  the C en tra l 
M ilita ry  T ra c t  R ailroad  on July  9, 1856, u n d er 
the caption  T h e  C hicago , B urling ton  an d  Q u in cy  
Rail R oad  C om pany. O n  A pril 28, 1864, this 
com pany pu rchased  a t fo reclosure the N o rth e rn  
C ross w hich had  been prev iously  nam ed  the 
Q uincy  an d  C hicago. T h a t  portion  of the old 
P. & O . w hich had  been built betw een  P eo ria  an d  
E as t B urling ton  w as  acqu ired  in the g ran d  con­
solidation of June 24, 1864, w hen  the com pany 
assum ed its p re sen t-d ay  title : C hicago, B urling ­
ton ö  Q u in cy  R ailroad  C om pany.

W illiam J. P etersen


